Responses to Industry Questions regarding the 
Request for Proposal

Note:  In the event of any inconsistency between data provided in this document and the Final RFP, the language in the Final Request For Proposal (RFP), including any amendments, will govern.

1. Who is the incumbent Contractor on the PAAC II Contract (NAS5-03079)?

Answer:  SGT, Inc.


2. How can I access directives such as GPRs and GPDs?

Answer:  Directives such as GPRs and GPDs can be accessed at the following web site:  http://nodis3.gsfc.nasa.gov/


3. Does PAAC III Conference Attendee's List posted yesterday includes the names of companies that also responded to (provided comments on) the PAAC III Draft RFP?  If not, it might be a good idea to identify them, as well, is a separate list.  

Answer:  A general list of interested parties will be posted, however, it may not capture each individual name and/or vendor name that has submitted related to a question. 

4. The pre-solicitation conference list of attendees containing my email address is missing an "l" from my last name. 
 
Currently it reads:  Kim.Terrel@katz-ims.com
 
Can it please be changed to:  Kim.Terrell@katz-ims.com

Answer:  The PAAC III Conference Attendee's List will be revised and 


re-posted to correct this typographical error.

5. PAAC III Reference Library (Task Order Statements of Work): Numerous references are made in the PAAC II Task Orders to tools, to include NGIN (Next Generation Integration Network), Cicero, WIT (Workforce Information Tool), Primavera, and unspecified automated project control and program management tools. 

Please identify all of the automated project control and project/program management tools used in the performance of the PAAC contract, to include:

(1) The name of each tool and acronym

(2) Their source (COTS, GOTS or custom and manufacturer/developer) 

(3) How access will be provided under PAAC III (access to the tool, source code)

(4) The PACC-related modules/functional capabilities of each tool (specific support to Planning & Scheduling, CM, Doc/Lib, Gen Business)

(5) The programming languages and databases used in the tool.

(6)
The level of documentation for each tool (programmer’s guide, user’s guide, maintenance manual, etc.)

Answer:   
(1)  The number of the automated project control and program management tools is too great to specify the name and acronym for each tool.  These tools may be developed in commercial off the shelf applications/formats and/or they may be Government developed tools. The Government will provide access to all tools upon contract award.  The Government will maintain updates and operability of the tools.
 (2)  Automated project control and program management tools may be commercial off the shelf applications/formats and/or they may be Government developed tools.
(3) The Government will provide electronic access to these tools on Government provided systems. 
(4) The on-site tools and databases support all functional areas of the Statement of Work.  The functional capabilities are specific to the areas they support and are too numerous to list.  All available and applicable instructional manuals, programmer guides, and maintenance manuals that exist for each tool will be provided upon contract award. 
(5) Automated project control and program management tools are in a variety of applications to include but not limited to windows based systems developed in Active Server Pager, Visual Basic Script, JAVA, and Sequel Structural Query language, Structural Query Language, and Oracle.  
(6) The tools are too numerous to list the programming languages and databases in each tools.     
6. Representative Task Order 2;  Ref:      DRFP Exhibit 11 
The PAAC III contract period of performance is 4/27/08 thru 9/26/13.  The period of performance for RTO 2 is 11/01/08 thru 10/31/13, beginning 6 months after contract start and continuing 6 months beyond the contract period of performance.  Please verify these dates.  If they are correct, can we assume we do not include RTO pricing data beyond contract year 5?

Answer:  The period of performance for RTO 2 in the final RFP was revised to 11/01/2008 thru 10/31/2012.

7. Proposal Content and Page Limitations, Past Performance; Ref: DRFP Section L.11(b)(1)
(a)  We assume that the oral presentation will only contain information on the specific relevant contracts, not the rest of the information required in the Past Performance volume such as safety data or identification of questionnaire recipients.  Is this a correct assumption? 

Answer:  L.16  Past Performance Volume,   (a)  INFORMATION FROM THE OFFEROR (To be presented orally), Bullet 1 was revised in Amendment 1 to state that only the Customer Name is required in the Past Performance Oral Presentation charts.  All other information to be presented orally noted in , (a) INFORMATION FROM THE OFFEROR (To be presented orally) remains unchanged.  Therefore, safety data as noted is required as part of the Oral Presentation.  

(b)  We have determined that it takes 4 pages at 18-pt font to respond succinctly to the requirements for one contract citation.  Restricting the past performance presentation to 10 pages therefore effectively limits offerors to two contracts.  With that restriction, we cannot meet the requirement for 
citations from major subcontractors or teammates if there is more than one.  We request either more 
pages be allowed (recommend 6 additional pages) or restricting the material presented to selected essential information and allowing the full response to requirements be contained in Volume IV text.   

Answer:  The final RFP revised the font point size to 14 point for Oral Presentation Charts.  In addition Amendment 1 revised the number of charts for Past Performance Oral Presentations to 15 charts.   
8. Indirect Ceiling Rates;  Ref:      DRFP Section L.15.2(f); B.4 
DRFP Section L.15.2(f), Indirect Ceiling Rates, states “Your cost proposal must clearly state the ceiling rate proposed for each of the offeror’s indirect expense pools…”  Contract clause B.4, Limitation of Indirect Costs, states that “Within each of the Contractor’s fiscal years, the Contractor shall not charge or be reimbursed by the Government, under this or any other Government contract, for indirect costs in excess of the individual indirect expense dollars…”   

     The PAAC III Bidders Library, however, contains the current PAAC II contract for reference.  Clause B.3, Limitation of Indirect Costs, of the incumbent’s current PAAC II contract states that ceilings are applied in the aggregate, derived by the application of all of the ceilings to the appropriate bases.  Can offerors propose an aggregate ceiling similar to PAAC II that caps the overall wrap to a certain factor but does not cap the individual pools, thereby giving the contractor the freedom to manage risks in this fashion while still providing ceilings on cost growth?

Answer:  B. 4  LIMITATION OF INDIRECT COSTS (GSFC 52.231‑90) (JUL 2006) was revised in Amendment 1 as follows:
" 


a. Within each of the Contractor's fiscal years, the Contractor shall not charge or be reimbursed by the Government, under this or any other Government contract, for indirect costs in excess of the aggregate indirect expense dollars derived by the application of the following indirect cost ceiling rates to the appropriate base(s) set forth below.
9. Ref 39.
We understand that the Orals Presentations will be scheduled within 10 business days after the proposal delivery, to be held as soon thereafter as practical. This could result in Orals being held as early as two business days after proposal delivery. Will the Government clarify the earliest date that Orals presentations will be held?

Answer:  The Oral Presentations will be scheduled within 10 days, however, the presentations will most likely not occur within 10 days scheduling period.  At the present time, the Government intends to schedule the first Oral Presentation on or about 11/26/07.  However, the start date for Oral Presentations is at the Government's discretion and is not finalized.  
10. Ref 81.  Many companies have understanding and experience necessary to provide earned value management training to the Government, even though they might not have specific past performance in this limited area. The incumbent apparently does provide this through the existing contract. Consider restating the applicability of this past performance factor to limit the element for consideration to earned value management but not associated training.

Answer:  The "Planning and Scheduling" element of the Past Performance Questionnaire has several components that are considered and the EVM training is just one of those components.  The Government feels it is appropriate to refer to this specific type of training.  Such consideration will not unduly restrict offerors from having past performance in this area, since there are many components in Planning and Scheduling being considered by the evaluators. 
11. Ref 83.
Since the Government has redefined the task such that launch will now occur in 2011, much closer to the end date of the task (4/30/2011), the specific timing of launch has a major impact on the task activities. Will the Government specify a specific target launch date?

Answer:  The launch date for RTO 1 is revised in Amendment 2 to 5/22/2014.  The launch date of 5/22/2014 is outside of both the contract and the task periods of performance.  This provides a more defined timeline.  

12. Ref. RTO1: Task/event 3.1 requires schedule analysis of project data. There is no obvious IT component to the activity. Could you clarify the IT component of the work, or confirm that it belongs in a different functional area?

Answer:
 RTO 1, Section 3.1 includes data management as an element


 of Information Technology. 
13. Ref. RTO2: The Task Background describes a budget of $500M for the project. Since this is described as a long term project, can the Government clarify for what period of the project life cycle does this figure apply?

Answer:  The budget amount of $500M is for the total OLDSAT Project period of 25 years in orbit plus the pre and post launch period for a total OLDSAT Project period of 30 years.  Accordingly, RTO 2 is revised in Amendment 2 to add a Total Project period of performance from 10/1985 to 10/2015 with a total budget for this period of $500M.
14. Ref. RTO2: Should we assume that OLDSAT is a single satellite (e.g. HST) or a series of satellites (e.g. GOES)?

Answer:  It is not relevant to RTO 2 whether there is a single or a series of satellites, so, 

no assumptions should be made regarding the number of satellites.

15. When do you anticipate releasing the RFP for NNG07197688?

Answer:  The RFP was released on October 12, 2007.

16. This is the second RFP out of GSFC where we
have seen unburdened DL rates being provided with the RFP.  Assuming that


most bidders would use these (and even if they didn't but justified it),


and the fact that the exhibits require that unburdened DL rates be


displayed, there is no way that a  prime contractor can provide the


information required for the prime's submission without the subcontractor's


revealing, at a minimum, their markup on the unloaded DL rates.  Even that


composite markup is proprietary.  So, the question becomes - how does a


subcontractor who is unwilling to submit this data to the prime comply with


the RFP instructions.
  
Answer:  Under IDIQ contracts subcontractor loaded rates are set forth in the resultant contract and used to develop task plans.  It is not possible to avoid having subcontractors submit loaded rates for this effort.  Section L.15 Cost Volume, 1. Instructions, Paragraph 9, states " Prospective subcontractors may submit proprietary cost data, under separate cover, directly to the Government no later than the date and time specified in the instructions for receipt of offers for this RFP." in order to limit access to proprietary data.  
17. G. 2     CONTRACTOR REQUESTS FOR GOVERNMENT-PROVIDED PROPERTY (1852.245-70) (SEPTEMBER 2007) (DEVIATION)
(a) The Contractor shall provide all property required for the performance of this contract.  Issue:  NASA has not corrected this item. This represents a major transition schedule risk and cost impact to the contractors. We do not believe the government intends to impose this; if so, please explain.  

Answer:  The Contractor will not be required to provide property under the PAAC III contract for performance onsite at NASA facilities.  G.2 refers to property offsite..  

18. Ref:  RFP Section L.11(b)(2), Proposal Content and Page Limitations, page 74, 3rd paragraph

"Volumes I, II, III, and IV shall be submitted in separate three-ring binders.  Diagrams, tables, artwork, and photographs may be reduced and, if necessary, run landscape or folded to eliminate oversize pages.  Text in exhibits, diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller than 10 point.

Since the oral presentation charts are contained within Volumes II and IV, we interpret the requirement that "text in exhibits, diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller than 10 point" applies to the exhibits, diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs in the oral presentation charts as well as the standard text portions in these volumes.  Is this correct?

We understand the requirement that the oral presentation charts' text shall be no smaller than 14-point font.

Answer:  Consistent with Section L.11 (b) Proposal Content and Page/Time Limitations, 
(2), Paragraph 3, " Volumes I, II, III, and IV shall be submitted in separate 
three-ring binders. Diagrams, tables, artwork, and photographs may be reduced 
and, if necessary, run landscape or folded to eliminate oversize pages.  Text in 
exhibits, diagrams, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller 
than 10 point."  In other words, text included in exhibits, diagrams, charts, 

artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller then 10 point.  Also note that 
"Diagrams, 
tables, artwork, and photographs shall not be used to circumvent 
the text size limitations of the proposal."  IMPORTANT - Oral Presentation 
Chart text remains unchanged and shall be no smaller then 14 point.

19. PAAC III Representative ask Order: RTO 1, Exhibit 11
In "1.1 .........Project Level Schedule consists of 500 to 1,000 issues to be tracked."
In "1.2 .........This schedule consists of the most significant (200+) issues. 

Does "issues" in 1.1 and 1.2 equal "activities"? If not, please explain

Answer:   No, issues do not equal activities.  In other words there is no relationship between the number of issues and the resultant number of actives that a contractor would be required to perform.  Section 1.1 requires maintenance and updates of a Monthly project schedule.  Section 1.2 require maintenance and updates of a Quarterly project schedule.  The updates in the Quarterly schedule are the most significant issues from the Monthly project schedule.    
20. I attended the pre-solicitation meeting for the PAAC III contract.  It was mentioned in the meeting that a list of attendees, interested vendors, and the slides would be posted on the Internet.  I have not seen them as of yet and was wondering if you could tell me when this information would be made available?

Answer:  The list of Pre-solicitation Conference Attendees is available on the NAIS web site at:  http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=51
21. The bidder's library link, http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/PAACIII/Home.HTML is not working.

Answer:  The web site is now working properly 

22. Attachment A, SOW 3 -- Information Technology, 1st paragraph (pg 4):  The SOW states that an IT Management Plan must be approved by the GSFC CIO before the contractor can initiate activities such as the design, operation, and maintenance of information technology services.  There is no mention of an IT Management Plan on the Deliverable Schedule (RFP Section B.1).  Is the IT Management Plan a deliverable, and if so, what is due date?

Answer:  The IT Management Plan will be added to B.1 Deliverable Requirements (GSFC52.211-99)(OCT 1988) by Amendment to the RFP.  


23. For questions sent after the release of the PAAC III Final RFP, what is the timeline for responding? 

Answer:  There is no specific timeline for responding to questions.  Questions will be answered as soon as possible.   However, offerors are cautioned that there may be insufficient time for the Government to respond to questions if they are received too close to the date for receipt of proposals.   


24. PAAC III RFP Page 19, G.2(a) "The contractor shall provide all required for the performance of this contract" -does this mean the contractor should provide all the desktop computers to all of their employees?

Answer:   No the contractor is not required to provide property under the PAAC III 
contract.  Refer to Question  17.   


25. (a)  We note that there has been no update to the Subject RFP to date. Are you expecting to release a Cover Letter similar to the Draft RFP package? In particular, is there a period in which you will accept questions or requests for clarification?

Answer:  The RFP NNG07197688 was released on 10/12/07;  Amendment 1 to the RFP was released on 10/23/07. 

No cover letter will be released for the RFP.  Refer to the answer provided for Question 23 for the Government's timeline for responding to questions.
 

(b)  An extremely important issue for clarification concerns the Cost Evaluation process; in particular, the purpose of the "PAAC II Position Average Labor Rates" provided in the Reference Library. Does the Government intend to "should cost" all bidder's DL rates to reflect those provided in this table?

 

If so, do these rates only apply to those positions expected to be filled through incumbent capture?

 

If not, what is the purpose of the provided table? 

Answer:  The PAAC II Position Average Labor Rates are provided as supplemental information to offerors. These rates only apply to those positions that offerors expect to fill through incumbent capture.  In the event an offeror states that they do intend to capture incumbents, the Government will evaluate based on the offeror's proposed rates whether incumbents can be captured.  This is not an "automatic" should cost adjustment.   Rather, the Government will perform an evaluation based on each offerors total compensation plan.  In the event an offeror states their intent to use a source of personnel other then incumbents, the Government will evaluate the reasonableness of the offerors approach.  
 

(c) For bidding purposes, and as explained in answers questions 80 and 102 in the Responses to Industry Questions..., the rates cited provide no insight into the salary or even average salary an incumbent employee may currently be earning. 

Answer:  The information provided on incumbent rates is an average of the direct labor for each category sited.   

 

(d)  For example, consider ten Senior-Level MIS Specialists with salaries of either $44.09/hr or $33.49/hr (for an average rate of $38.79). If nine of this staff earn the higher rate, the average cost for all ten employees is $43.03/hr. Conversely, if nine of the Senior-Level staff earn the lower rate, the average cost for all ten employees is $34.55/hr. This represents a 10.9% difference, either above or below, the stated average DL rate. The Sr. MIS Specialist accounts for 34% of the labor hours on this contract as specified in Exhibit 1. The variance in this one category alone would affect the total bid by 4%. 

Answer:  The Government did not have weighted salary information available to provide to potential offerors.  The information set forth in the RFP is intended to provide offerors with the ability to more accurately project the cost of incumbent capture.     

26. Can you disclose the Source Evaluation Board Members (SEB) names?

Answer:  GSFC does not, as a matter of policy release this information at this stage of the procurement process.


27. What is the cost per year of the current contract.

Answer:  The current contract has averaged costs of approximately $25M annually.  


28. What is the allowed percentage of directed subs?

Answer:  Directed subcontracts require specific documentation and approvals by the Government.  There is no specific percentage associated with subcontracting except for the overall requirement that the prime contractor perform at least 51%.  


29. Is HSPD 12 language in the RFP?

Answer:  Amendment 1 added HSPD 12 language to the RFP


Can Organizational Conflicts of Interest (OCI) plans be submitted prior to proposal submission?

Answer:  In accordance with the RFP, Section  B.1
DELIVERABLE REQUIREMENTS (GSFC 52.211‑90) (OCT 1988)
30. " 
, Item 13 the OCI plan is due 30 days after contract award.
31. Can the incumbent bid?  

Answer:  The incumbent has graduated from the 8(a) program and cannot bid as a prime 8(a) contractor on the PAAC III RFP.  The incumbent may bid as part of a team in accordance with the applicable regulations in Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) and the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).


32. Section L.15.1Cost Volume, page 90, 1st paragraph, last sentence: States that “The PAAC III electronic bidders library also contains a file entitled, Staffing, which reflects the incumbent’s historical staffing for information purposes only.” This information was not found in the Bidder’s Library; please identify when this information will be made available through the PAAC III electronic bidders library.

Answer:   This information is available in the PAAC III Reference Library at the following web address:   http://code210.gsfc.nasa.gov/PAACIII/Home.HTML

33. Amendment 0001, Exhibit 11, Representative Task Orders (RTOs): The start date of each of the three RTOs is 11/01/2008.  This date is seven months after what we understand to be the PAAC III contract start date (4/28/2008) and nearly nine months after completion of Phase-In. By 11/01/2008, all required resources have been assigned to the Task orders issued by the Contracting Officer, and these resources will have been our employees since 4/28/2008. Therefore, we ask that NASA clarify if an Exhibit 8 is required for each of the RTOs.

Answer:  Yes Exhibit 8 , Source of Personnel Charts by RTO is required for each RTO.  This will enable the Government to have clear insight into and evaluate how offerors intend to provide personnel.   
